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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Members of South India Projects
Ltd will be held Saturday, September 29, 2018 at 03:30 pm (IST) at 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001,
West Bengal, India, to transact the following Business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditor’s thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma [DIN: 06554945], who retires by
rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To ratify the appointment of M/s. D. Kothary & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 105335W), as statutory auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration and to pass the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution thereof:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof), pursuant
to the recommendations of the audit committee and pursuant to the resolution passed by the members
at the 36™ Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2017, the appointment of M/s. D. Kothary &
Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 105335W) as the statutory auditors of the Company
to hold office till the conclusion of the 41 consecutive AGM to be held in the financial year 2021-22, is
hereby ratified for the financial year 2018-19.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix such
remuneration payable to them for the financial year 2018-19, as may be determined by the audit committee
in consultation with the auditors and that such remuneration may be paid as may be agreed upon between
the auditors and the Board of Directors”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve the issue of Bonus Shares.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 63 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the Rules made thereunder, Articles 116 & 117 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s)
thereto or enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, to the extent notified and in
effect and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions, permissions and provisions of other applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directions, guidelines including those issued by Reserve Bank of India and such
other regulatory authority(ies) concerned, from time to time, to the extent applicable and on such terms,
conditions, stipulations and modifications as may be prescribed, imposed or suggested while granting
such approvals, and subject to the approval of the members for the resolution as set out at item no. 4 of the
Notice, the consent and approval of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded for a sum not
exceeding Rs. 20,13,35,520 (Rupees Twenty Crores Thirteen Lakhs Thirty Five Thousand Five Hundred
and Twenty only) out of the Securities Premium Account of the Company, for the Financial year ended
March 31,2018, be capitalized and accordingly the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred
to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee or authorised person(s) which
the Board has constituted or appointed to exercise its powers, as the case may be, including the powers,
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conferred by this Resolution) be and is hereby authorized to appropriate the said sum for distribution to
and amongst the members of the Company, whose names appear in the Register of Members maintained
by the Company and the List of Beneficial Owners as received from the National Securities Depository
Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited on such date (“Record Date”) as may be fixed in
this regard by the Board/Committee in accordance with law and to apply the said sum in paying up in full
a maximum of 2,01,33,552 (Two Crores One Lakh Thirty Three Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty Two
only) Equity Shares (“the Bonus Shares”) of the Company of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten only) at par, to be
allotted, distributed and credited as fully paid-up to and amongst the members in the proportion of 4:1,
Four (4) bonus shares for every One (1) existing fully paid up equity shares held by them respectively as
on the Record Date and that the Bonus Shares so distributed, for all purposes, be treated as an increase in
the nominal amount in the Capital of the Company by each members, and not as an income””

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the issue and allotment of the said bonus shares to the extent that they
relate to Non-Resident Indians (NRIs), Persons of Indian Origin / Overseas Corporate Bodies and other
foreign investors of the company, will be subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and any other
regulatory authority, as the case may be.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bonus Shares so allotted shall always be subject to the terms and
conditions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and shall rank pari
passu in all respect with the existing fully paid up Equity Shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT no letter of allotment shall be issued but in the case of members who
hold shares in dematerialized mode, the Bonus Shares shall be credited to the beneficiary accounts of the
members maintained with Depository Participants and in case of members who hold shares in physical
mode, the share certificate(s) in respect of the Bonus Shares shall be dispatched within the prescribed time
limit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take necessary steps for listing of
the Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchanges where the Equity Shares of the Company are listed, in terms of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable Rules
and Regulations.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things and to give such directions as may be necessary or expedient and to settle any question or
difficulty that may arise in relation thereto, decide the exact number of Bonus Shares to be issued based
on the Paid up capital of the Company as obtaining on the Record Date and to delegate all such powers
granted hereunder to a Committee of Directors and / or any other officer(s) of the Company, as may deem
fit or desirable and their decision shall be final and binding.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Managing Director
[DIN: 06554945]
Registered Office:
5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001,
West Bengal, India.
Dated: August 25, 2018
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NOTES:

1.

10.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY.

The proxy form should be lodged with the Company at its Registered Office at least 48 hours before
the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may

appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

A proxy shall not have a right to speak at the AGM and shall not be entitled to vote except on poll.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Saturday, 15" September, 2018 to Tuesday, 18" September, 2018 (both days inclusive).

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID
number and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their folio number in the
attendance slip for attending the meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the AGM.

For convenience of members, an attendance slip, proxy form and the route map of the venue of the
Meeting are annexed hereto. Members are requested to affix their signature at the space provided and
hand over the attendance slips at the place of meeting. The proxy of a member should mark on the
attendance slip as "proxy.

All documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company during office hours on all days except Sunday & public holidays between 11.00 a.m. and
1.00 p.m. up to the date of Annual General Meeting.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for items of Special
Businesses is annexed herewith.

The Annual Report 2017-18, the Notice of the 37" Annual General Meeting and instructions for
e-voting, along with the Attendance slip and Proxy form are being sent by electronic mode to all
the members whose email address are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)
for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For
members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid documents
are being sent by permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 37" Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report
2017-18 will also made be available on the Company’s website www.southindiaprojectslimited.in
for their download. The physical copies of the documents will also be available at the Company’s
Registered Office in Registered office / Corporate office for inspection during normal business
hours on any working day. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to
receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for it, by post free of cost. For
any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor e-mail id:
southindiaprojectslimited@gmail.com.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

IF THE MEMBERS HAVE ANY QUERIES ON THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS, BOARD’S REPORT
& AUDITORS REPORT, THE SAME SHOULD BE FORWARDED TO THE COMPANY IN
WRITING AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE AT LEAST 10 DAYS BEFORE THE MEETING SO
THAT THE SAME CAN BE REPLIED AT THE TIME OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO
THE MEMBERS’ SATISFACTION.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by members at the AGM.

The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect of the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at
the AGM, is furnished as annexure to the Notice. The directors have furnished consent / declaration
for their appointment / re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder.

Members are requested to bring their copies of the reports to Annual General Meeting.

Members holding shares in the same set of names under different ledger folios are requested to apply
for consolidation of such folios along with share certificates to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut off date i.e. Saturday, September 22, 2018.

Members are requested to promptly notify any changes in their addresses to the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through an electronic
voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 as presently in force and the business set out in the Notice
will be transacted through such voting.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Income Tax
Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) by every participant in securities market. Members holding
sharesin electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN details to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

In order to exercise strict control over the transfer documents, members are requested to send the
transfer documents/ correspondence, if any, directly to:

NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Unit: South India Project Ltd.
Share Transfer Agent
D-511, Bagree Market, 5 Floor, 71,
B. R. B. Basu Road, Kolkata, West Bengal: 700001
Ph. 033 - 22357270; Fax: 033 - 22156823

[¢]
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Instructions for Voting through electronics means:

In compliance with Regulation 44, SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements, 2015,
provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company is pleased
to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 36" Annual General Meeting (AGM)
by electronic means (‘e-Voting”) and the items of business as detailed in this Notice may be transacted
through e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The Members may cast their votes through E-voting from a place other than the venue of the AGM
(“Remote E-voting”).

The Members who have cast their vote by Remote E-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again.

The Remote E-voting facility will commence from 9.00 AM (IST) on Wednesday, September 26, 2018 and
will end at 5.00 PM (IST) on Friday, September 28, 2018. Remote E-voting will not be allowed beyond
the aforesaid date and time and the Remote E-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL upon expiry of
aforesaid period.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Member /
beneficial owner as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, September 22, 2018.

The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of beneficial owners as on the cut-
off date i.e. Saturday, September 22, 2018, only shall be entitled to vote on the Resolutions set out in this
Notice.

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their of paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on relevant date Saturday, September 22, 2018.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 25,2018 has appointed Mr. Deep Shukla, Practicing
Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 5652) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting process and
voting done through physical ballot paper, if any, at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the AGM and through Remote E-voting, not later
than 3 (three) days from the conclusion of the AGM make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report and submit
the same to the Chairman of the meeting.

The results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company
www.southindiaprojectslimited.in and on the website of CDSL and shall also be communicated to Stock
Exchange(s).

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of
the AGM i.e. Saturday, September 29, 2018.

The instructions for e-voting are as under:

i.  The voting period begins on from from 9.00 AM (IST) on Wednesday, September 26, 2018 and
will end at 5.00 PM (IST) on Friday, September 28, 2018. During this period shareholders’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date
Saturday, September 22, 2018, may cast their vote electronically.

ii.  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting
period.

iii.  Click on “Shareholders” tab.
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iv.

V.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

ix.

Now, select the “South India Project Ltd” from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”
Now enter your User ID

a.  For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

¢.  Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user, follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their
name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.

e In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL Letters. Eg. If your name is Rajesh Kumar with
sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company
records for the said demat amount or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the
Bank Details Company records for the said demat account or folio.

e DPlease enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If
the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
enter the number of shares held by you as on the cut off date in the
Dividend Bank details field.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is also to be used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii.

Xviii.

Xix.

company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant SOUTH INDIA PROJECT LTD on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEYL’ and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Note for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians:

. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to
https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.

¢ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

¢ After receiving the login details they have to create compliance user should be created using
the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.

¢ The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

¢ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com



South India Projects Ltd. 37" Annual Report 2017-2018
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PRUSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item Nos. 4:

The Company’s shares were listed on BSE Limited. Over the years, the Company has performed significantly
both in terms of revenue and profit and has been rewarding its shareholders consistently. The Directors
have created free reserves to a considerable extent out of its distributable profits and the balance in reserves
and surplus as on March 31, 2018 is Rs. 29,39,55,704 (Rupees Twenty Nine Crores Thirty Nine Lakhs Fifty
Five Thousand Seven Hundred and Four only). Presently, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company
is Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crores only) divided into 3,00,00,000 (Three Crores) Equity Shares of
Re. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

With a view to share a part of the Company’s free reserves, its Board of Directors has recommended issue of
bonus shares in the ratio of 4:1, i.e. Four (4) Bonus shares for every One (1) shares held by the shareholders,
subject to their approval. The issue of bonus shares, by way of capitalizing reserves, is authorized by the
Company’s Articles of Association. The paid-up capital as on March 31, 2018 is Rs. 5,03,33,880 (Rupees
Five Crores Three Lakhs Thirty Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty only). An amount of Rs.
20,13,35,520 (Rupees Twenty Crores Thirteen Lakhs Thirty Five Thousand Five Hundred and Twenty
only) from the free reserves is required to be capitalized for the issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 4:1.
After the bonus issue, the paid-up share capital would increase to Rs. 25,16,69,400 (Rupees Twenty Five
Crores Sixteen Lakhs Sixty Nine Thousand and Four Hundred only). The proposal for capitalization of the
said reserves and issue of bonus shares is now placed for consideration and approval of the members. The
Record Date for determining the eligibility of the shareholders to receive the said bonus shares will be fixed
by the Board. The Board of Directors recommend for approval of members the capitalization of reserves
and issue of bonus shares as proposed.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution as set out in Item No. 04 this notice as an Special
Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Managing Director
[DIN: 06554945]

Registered Office:
5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001,

West Bengal, India.

Dated: August 25, 2018
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To,

The Members,

SOUTH INDIA PROJECTS LTD
CIN: L72100WB1981PLC034342
KOLKATA

BOARD’S REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 37" Annual Report on the Audited Financial Statement of

South India Projects Ltd (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The summarized financial performance of the Company for the FY 2017-18 and FY 2016-17 is given
below:
[Amount in Rs.]
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18
Revenue from operations 4,00,28,924 | 6,17,20,699 196,683,855 161,12,69,865
Other Income - - - -
Total Revenue 4,00,28,924 | 6,17,20,699 | 196,683,855 | 161,12,69,865
Total Expenses 3,32,50,073 | 4,70,19,903 182,557,015 154,18,68,716
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and 67,78,851 | 1,47,00,795 | 1,41,26,840 |  6,94,01,149
extraordinary items and tax
Exceptional Items - - - -
Extraodinary Items - - - -
Net Profit Before Tax 67,78,851 | 1,47,00,795 1,41,26,840 6,94,01,149
Provision for Tax
- Current Tax
11 21,00,000 38,00,000 52,47,307 2,52,10,718
Diedontubtioises | S | ks | s | e
vears p 1,20,039 (72,602) 120,039 (72,602)
Net Profit After Tax 45,04,710 | 1,08,67,552 87,05,391 4,41,57,188
Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued i i i i
operations
Tax Expense of Discontinued i i i i
operations
Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued i i i i
operations (after tax)
Profit/(Loss) for the period 45,04,710 | 1,08,67,552 87,05,391 4,41,57,188
Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified i i i i
to profit or loss
- Income tax relating to items that
will not be reclassified to profit or - - - -
loss
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- Items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss

- Income tax relating to items that
will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive income for the

period (Comprising Profit (Loss) and

Other Comprehensive Income for the

period)

Earnings per equity share (for

continuing operation):

- Basic (In%) 1.14 2.16 2.69 8.77

- Diluted (In ) 1.14 2.16 2.69 8.77
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

- - 24,357 1,53,105

45,04,710 | 1,08,67,552 87,29,748 4,43,10,293

Standalone:

During the year under review, the Standalone total Income was Rs. 6,17,20,699 as against Rs. 4,00,28,924
for the corresponding previous year.

Total Comprehensive income for the period was Rs. 40.29 lacs as against Rs. 45,04,710 in the corresponding
previous year

Consolidated:

During the year under review, the consolidated total Income was Rs. 4,41,57,188 as against Rs. 87,05,391
for the corresponding previous year.

Total Comprehensive consolidated income for the period was Rs. 4,43,10,293 as against Net Rs. 87,29,748
in the corresponding previous year

TRANSFER TO STATUTORY RESERVES

During the financial year under review, your Company transferred of INR 21,73,510.00 (Indian Rupees
Twenty One Lakh Seventy Three Thousand Five hundred Ten only) to Special reserve as provided in
Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources for the further growth of the Company, your Directors think fit not to
recommend any dividend for the year under review.

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company has proposed to diversified it’s business plan in the field related with providing Manpower
placement and recruiting, Selecting, Interviewing, Training and Employing all types of executives, Middle
Management Staff, Junior Level Staff, Workers, Labor’s Skilled/Unskilled required by various Industries
and organizations.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

In order to diversify the business of the company the new object clause was inserted in Main object clause of
the Company, to commence the Human resource related businesses along with existing business activities.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2018 is INR 503,33,880.00 (Indian
Rupees Five Crore Three Lakh Thirty Three Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty only) divided into 50,33,388
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(Fifty Lakhs Thirty Three Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Eight) Equity Shares of INR.10.00 (Indian
Rupees Ten) Each. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any securities.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

At the 36™ Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2017, Mr. Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thumma
(DIN: 07033919) was re-appointed as the Director of the Company and his officer shall liable to retire by
rotation.

In accordance with section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of Association
of the Company Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma (DIN: 06554945), Director of the Company, retires
by rotation and being eligible; offers himself for re-appointment at the forthcoming 37* Annual General
Meeting. The Board recommends the said reappointment for shareholders’ approval.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Director(s) have submitted their disclosure to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as to qualify for their appointment as Independent Director, under the provisions of section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement / Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board
has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as
well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The Directors expressed satisfaction with the
evaluation process.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company
hereby confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD MEETINGS

Dates for Board Meetings are well decided in advance and communicated to the Board and the intervening
gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Agreement. The information as required under Regulation 17(7) read with Schedule II Part A of the LODR
is made available to the Board. The agenda and explanatory notes are sent to the Board in advance. The
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Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. The Board meets at
least once a quarter to review the quarterly financial results and other items on the agenda and also on the
occasion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM’) of the Shareholders. Additional meetings are held, when
necessary.

Further, Committees of the Board usually meet on the same day of formal Board Meeting, or whenever the
need arises for transacting business. The recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board
for necessary approval and noting.

05 (Five) Board Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2018, the dates which are 30 May
2017, 7th August 2017, 16™ August 2017, 15th November 2017 and 14th February 2018. The gap between
any two Board meetings during this period did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

Attendance details of Directors for the year ended March 31, 2018 are given below:

Name of the Directors Category Meljt(;hzi l:;:::lie d
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma Managing Director 05

Non-Executive, Non-Independent

Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thumma Director 01
Miss. Nikitha Tiparnapally Independent Director 05
Surya Narayan Tripathy Independent Director 05

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has formed an Audit Committee as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All
members of the Audit Committee possess strong knowledge of accounting and financial management.

05 (Five) Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2018, the dates which are 30"
May 2017, 7th August 2017, 16" August 2017, 15th November 2017 and 14th February 2018.

Further, during the financial year under review, there was no requirement for re-constitution of the said
Committee. Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

S.N. Name of Directors Designation No. of Meetings
Attended
1. Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Member, Managing Director 05
Thumma
2. Mrs. Tiparnapally Nikitha Member, Independent Director 05
3. Mr. Surya Narayan Tripathy Chairman, Independent Director 05

Further, the Audit Committee is functional as per the provision of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made thereunder and as per Regulation 18 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration committee of the Company shall perform such role and duties as
mentioned in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Nomination and Remuneration
committee has been assigned to approve and settle the remuneration package with optimum blending of
monetary and non-monetary outlay.

05 (Five) Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2018, the dates which are 30"
May 2017, 7th August 2017, 16" August 2017, 15th November 2017 and 14th February 2018.
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Further, during the financial year under review, there was no requirement for re-constitution of the said
Committee. Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

S. Name of Directors Designation No. of
N. Meetings
Attended

1. | Joseph Sudheer Reddy Member, Non-Executive, 01
Thumma Non-Independent Director

2. | Mrs. Tiparnapally Member, Independent 05
Nikitha Director

3. | Mr. Surya Narayan Chairman, Independent 05
Tripathy Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of
Directors. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The Board
of Directors is authorized to decide Remuneration to Executive Directors. The Remuneration structure
comprises of Salary and Perquisites. Salary is paid to Executive Directors within the Salary grade approved
by the Members. The Nomination & Remuneration committee has been assigned to approve and settle the
remuneration package with optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary outlay.

In terms of requirements prescribed under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy inter-alia providing the terms for appointment and payment of remuneration to
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

During the year, there have been no changes to the Policy. The same is annexed to this report as Annexure
I and is available on our website www.southindiaprojectslimited.in.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

05 (Five) Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2018, the dates which are 30
May 2017, 7th August 2017, 16* August 2017, 15th November 2017 and 14th February 2018.

Further, during the financial year under review, there was no requirement for re-constitution of the said
Committee. Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

S. Name of Directors Designation No. of
N. Meetings
Attended
1. Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Member, Managing Director 05
Thumma
2. Mrs. Tiparnapally Nikitha | Member, Independent Director 05
3. Mr. Surya Narayan Chairman, Independent 05
Tripathy Director

The terms of reference were enlarged by the Board to be in line with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 20 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee reviews Shareholder’s / Investor’ s complaints like
non-receipt of Annual Report, physical transfer/ transmission/transposition, split/ consolidation of share
certificates, issue of duplicate share certificates etc. This Committee is also empowered to consider and
resolve the grievance of other stakeholders of the Company including security holders.

The total numbers of complaints received during the year was Nil and there was no pending complaint as
on March 31, 2018.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of the
Company, is enclosed as Annexure II and forms part of this Report.

Further, no employee of the Company is earning more than the limits as prescribed pursuant to Section
197 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Amendment Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of the Company.

Further, the names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn are disclosed in Annexure II1
and forms part of this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9, as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013 is hosted on the website of the Company at www.southindiaprojectslimited.in

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Statement AOC-1 pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Subsidiary Company is enclosed as Annexure
IV to this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which gives a detailed state of affairs of the Company’s
operations forma a part of this Annual Report as Annexure V.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the 36™ Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2017, M/s. D. Kothary & Co., Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Regd. No. 105335W), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
office till the conclusion of 41 Annual General Meeting to be held in financial year 2022.

In terms of the provisions relating to statutory auditors forming part of the Companies Amendment Act,
2017, notified on May 7, 2018, ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at every AGM is no more
a legal requirement. However, pursuant to Ordinary Resolution passed at the 36" AGM, appointment shall
subject to ratification at every annual general meeting.

Hence, the Notice convening the ensuing 37th AGM contained a resolution on ratification of appointment
of Statutory Auditors. Further, M/s. D. Kothary & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Regd. No. 105335W),
has confirmed that they are eligible to continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company to audit the books
of accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2019 and they will continue to be the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for Financial Year ending March 31, 2022.

Auditors Report as issued by M/s. D. Kothary & Co, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company is
self explanatory and need not call for any explanation by your Board.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, Ms. Reena S. Modi,
Practicing Company Secretary, have been appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The Secretarial
Audit Report is enclosed as Annexure VI to this report.
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EXPLANATION(S)/ COMMENT(S) PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(f)(i)& (ii), IF ANY, OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Explanation pursuant to Section 134(3)(f)(i):

There are no adverse remarks/Qualifications made in Statutory Report issued by Statutory Auditor of the
Company.

Explanation pursuant to Section 134(3)(f) (ii):

1. Certain relevant e-forms were pending for filing on MCA portal as on audit period which includes filing
of Annual Return, appointment of Managing Directors etc;

Reply:

The compiling of financial data took time due to shortage of personnel and hence the said delay in
filing of the same.

2. Website of the Company is not updated as per SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015;
Reply:
The website of the Company is under maintenance and will be active in due course of time.

3. Non-Compliance for appointment of Company Secretary and Internal Auditor for the aforesaid Audit
period.

Reply:

The Management is looking out for suitable candidate to be appointed as an Internal Auditor and
Company Secretary of the Company.

4. Minutes are in process of updation.
Reply:
The Company is process to complete.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls system. The Audit Committee of the Board
periodically reviews the internal control systems with the management and Statutory Auditors. Significant
findings are discussed and follow-ups are taken thereon.

Further, the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided stock options to any employee.
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM SYSTEM

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for
directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has laid down the procedure to inform the Board about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures. These procedures are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure that there is
timely identification and assessment of risks, measures to mitigate them, and mechanisms for their proper
and timely monitoring and reporting.

The Company does not fall under the ambit of top 100 listed entities, determined on the basis of market
capitalisation as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, compliance under Regulation
21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposits during the year under review. There are
no unclaimed deposits, unclaimed / unpaid interest, refunds due to the deposit holders or to be deposited
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on March 31, 2016.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans granted and investments made by the Company under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013, are provided in standalone financial statement under Note 9 & 13 respectively
under Notes forming part of financial statement.

INSURANCE
The properties/assets of the Company are adequately insured.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, if any, that were entered into during the period ended March 31, 2018, were
on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or
other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

The details of the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standard 24 are set out in Note No.
23.2 to the Significant Accounting policies part of this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Since your Company does not fall under the threshold laid down in section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, the provision of section 134(3)(o) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable and no disclosure is
required by the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good corporate practices ensure that a Company meets its obligations to optimize shareholders’ value and
fulfills its responsibilities to the community, customers, employees, Government and other segments of
the Society. It will, therefore, be its constant endeavour to achieve long term corporate goals. Even though
the Company is not presently covered by the Regulation governing Corporate Governance compliance,
the Company has taken various steps to initiate good Corporate Governance practices.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as
follows:

(a) Conservation of Energy -

We continue to strengthen our energy conservation efforts. We are always in lookout for energy efficient
measures for operation, and value conservation of energy through usage of latest technologies for quality of
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services. Although the equipments used by the Company are not energy sensitive by their very nature, still
the Company is making best possible efforts for conservation of energy, which assures that the computers
and all other equipments to be purchased by the Company strictly adhere to environmental standards, and
they make optimum utilization of energy.

(b) Absorption of Technology -

In this era of competition, in order to maintain and increase the clients and customers, we need to
provide best quality services to our clients and customers at minimum cost, which is not possible without
innovation, and adapting to the latest technology available in the market for providing the services.

(c) Research and Development (R&D) -

The Company believes that in order to improve the quality and standards of services, the Company has
progressive Research and Development Process, which should keep on increasing along with the scale of
operations of the Company.

(d) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo -

During the financial year under review, there were no foreign earnings and outgo.
TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore there
were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified
on 9th December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints
Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women employee.

The Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and
has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not received any
complaint of harassment.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable
secretarial standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adequate
and operating effectively.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

The Company has received show Cause Notice from Reserve Bank of India dated 16" March, 2018 for
cancellation of Certificate of Registration. Your Board has accepted to cancel the certificate of NBFC as
Company has discontinued the NBFC activities. However, there are no significant and material orders
passed by the Courts / Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its
future operations.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate
trading in securities by the Directors, Officers and designated employees of the Company. The Code
requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company
shares by the Directors, Officers and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is
closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board of Directors and the designated
employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.
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Annexure - 1
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) constituted the committee to be known as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more non-executive directors out of
which not less than one-half are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Director. However, the chairperson of the company (whether executive or nonexecutive) may be appointed
as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee.”

OBJECTIVE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 under the Listing
Agreement. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors,
KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

—  To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.

—  To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

—  To formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

—  To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board
for further evaluation of the Board.

—  To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.

—  To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

—  To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

—  To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

—  To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

—  To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.
APPLICABILITY

- Directors (Executive and Non Executive)

- Key Managerial Personnel

- Senior Management Personnel

DEFINITIONS:

“Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, including the modifications,
amendments, clarifications, circulars or re-enactment thereof.
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“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or
reconstituted by the Board.

“Company” means SJ Corporation Limited.
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.
“Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 2013
and includes -

—  Managing Director, or Executive Director or manager and in their absence, a whole- time director;
(includes Executive Chairman)

—  Company Secretary;

—  Chief Financial Officer; and

—  Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered
by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

“Senior Management” Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core
management team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include all members of management
one level below the executive directors including all functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall
have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

ROLE AND POWER OF THE COMMITTEE:-

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee:

The Committee shall:

—  Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director.

—  Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this

policy.
—  Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel.

Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management

(i). Appointment criteria and qualifications

a.  The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend
to the Board his / her appointment.
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b.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position
he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the
concerned position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time
Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person
holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of
shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond
seventy years.

Term / Tenure

a.

Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing
Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment
shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board
of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by
the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing
to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during
the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any
other capacity, either directly or indirectly. However, if a person who has already served as an
Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company as on October 1, 2014 or such other
date as may be determined by the Committee as per regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be
eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years only.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of
Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as
an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such
person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may
be prescribed under the Act.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act,
rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to
the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.
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€.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the
Company.

Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

(i).

(ii).

General:

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and
Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the
Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the
prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever
required;

The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in
accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of
the Company and as per the provisions of the Act;

Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by
the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in
the case of Whole-time Director;

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees
for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not
be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such
person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of
the remuneration.

Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel:

Fixed pay:

The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for
a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s
contribution to PE pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and
approved by the Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company
shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of
Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous
approval of the Central Government.
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(iii).

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction
of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company
and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.

Sitting Fees

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees
shall not exceed Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may
be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the
limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions
of the Act.

Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

MEMBERSHIP:-

The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
independent.

Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.

Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

CHAIRMAN:-

Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director;

Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee;

In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose
one amongst them to act as Chairman;

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.
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FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed
at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of
the Committee.

SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.
VOTING

—  Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of
Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the
Committee.

—  In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

—  Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the
subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and
Committee meeting.

IMPLEMENTATION

—  The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.

—  The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.
AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY

—  The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.

AMENDMENTS IN THE LAW

—  Any subsequent amendment/modification in the listing agreement and/or other applicable laws in
this regard shall automatically apply to this Policy.
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Annexure I1

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016

i.  The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year 2017-18 and

ii.  The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in the financial year 2017-

18
Name & Designation *Remuneration | % increase/ Ratio of
of each Director | decrease in remuneration of
& KMP for remuneration each Directors
Financial Year in the to median
2017-18 (Rs.) Financial remuneration of
Year 2017-18 employees
A. Independent Directors
Mrs. Tiparnapally Nikitha (ID) - - -
Mr. Surya N. Tripathy (ID) - - -
B. Executive Directors/KMP
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma (MD) 4,80,000 (9.50%) 6.97:01
Mr. Sanjay M. Chauhan (CFO) 21,60,000 30.90% 31.35:01
C. Non-Executive, Non-Independent
Director
Mr. Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thumma - - -

MD - Managing Director, WID - Whole-time Director, CFO - Chief Financial Officer; CS - Company
Secrtary.

1. Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 is Rs.68,889.44/-

iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2017-

18
Financial Year Financial Year Increase
2017 - 18 (Rs.) 2016 - 17 (Rs.) (%)
Median remuneration of all employees 68,889.44 85484 19.41%

Note: The calculation of % increase in the median remuneration has been done based on comparable
employees.

iv.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company.
There were 179 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2018.

V.  Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration.

Average percentile increase/decrease in the salaries of employee other than the MD in the Financial
Year 2017-18 was 20.37% and there is no increase in the salary of the MD.
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vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, KMPs, Senior
Management and other employees of the Company is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma Tiparnapally Nikitha
Managing Director Director
[DIN: 06554945] [DIN: 07399613]

Date: 25/08/2018

Registered Office:

5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001,
West Bengal, India.
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Annexure II1

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)(a) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016

. . Remuner-
Designation/ ation . Experi- ) Date of com- | Last employ- % of
Names of Qualifica- ence in Agein mencement ment
employees Nature of Received tion years of employ- share-
Duties years ment held holding
[Rs.] p.a.
Jagan Mohan . 1-May-2016 JNIT
Reddy I\]/;a:nagtmg 480000.00 MBA 19 years | 41 years Technologies 9.34%
Thumma trector PVT LTD
. JNIT
i”;d ruddin Opgatg’“s 3600000.00 1-May-2016 | Technologies -
eeru ca MBA 10 Years | 29 Years PVTLTD
. JNIT
Arvind Gatla ?Assmtant 505860.00 Technologies -
anager MBA 10 Years | 40 Years | 1-May-2016 PVT LTD
Krishna Technical JNIT
Prasad Architect 1679459.98 1-May-2016 Technologies -
Vyakaranam rehitec B-Tech 11 Years | 36 Years PVT LTD
Mohammed Blii?l(iss JNIT
Aziz Pash Devel ¢ | 199128226 B-Tech 1-May-2016 Technologies -
ziz Fasha cvelopmen 6 Years 28 Years PVT LTD
Manager
Nagesh Bl{‘;iiss JNIT
Kumar Development 1275103.77 B-Tech 46 1-May-2016 Technologies -
Banala P ) 27 Years PVT LTD
Manager Years
Mohammed Business B.Tech. 33 JNIT
Zuber Development 599688.00 Ye;Lrs 1-May-2016 Technologies -
Ahmed Manager 28 Years PVTLTD
. JNIT
CS}aanaﬁ' M. CFO 2160000.00 | | cA diate | 14 Years 1-May-2016 | Technologies -
auhan ntermediate 37 Years PVT LD
Joseph Business 1-May-2016 JNIT
Jagadeesh Development 642715.12 B.Tech. 3 Years 25 Years Technologies -
Dasari Trainee PVT LTD
Business 1-May-2016 JNIT
Munesh .
Kumar Pebba Development 538838.09 4 Years 30 Years Technologies -
Manager Degree PVT LTD

The above employees are related to the Directors of the Company. :

Names of Employees

Names of employees who are relatives of any Director

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma Brother of Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thumma
Syed Ameeruddin No Relation with any Director
Arvind Gatla No Relation with any Director

Krishna Prasad Vyakaranam

No Relation with any Director
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Mohammed Aziz Pasha No Relation with any Director
Nagesh Kumar Banala No Relation with any Director
Mohammed Zuber Ahmed No Relation with any Director
Sanjay M. Chauhan No Relation with any Director
Joseph Jagadeesh Dasari No Relation with any Director
Munesh Kumar Pebba No Relation with any Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma Tiparnapally Nikitha
Managing Director Director
[DIN: 06554945] [DIN: 07399613]

Date: 25/08/2018

Registered Office:

5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001,
West Bengal, India.
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Annexure - IV

FORM AOC-I

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/
joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lacs.)

S1. No. 1

Name of the subsidiary JNIT Technologies, INC.
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if March 31,2018

different from the holding company’s reporting period.

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last Reporting Currency: $ U.S. Dollar
date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign | Exchange Rate as on 31-03-2018 is Rs.65.04
subsidiaries.

Share capital Rs.74,801

Reserves & surplus Rs.12,56,56,094

Total assets Rs.42,23,16,576

Total Liabilities Rs.29,65,85,681
Investments -

Turnover Rs.160,39,27,764

Profit before taxation Rs.5,47,00,354

Provision for taxation Rs.2,14,10,718

Profit after taxation Rs.3,32,89,636

Proposed Dividend -

% of shareholding 100

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : - No

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : - No

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Sr. | Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

1. | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date -

2. | Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end -
No. -
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Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture -
Extend of Holding % -

Description of how there is significant influence -

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet -

3
4. | Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated -
5
6

Profit / Loss for the year -

i. Considered in Consolidation -

i Not Considered in Consolidation -

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations : -No

Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: -No

For D. Kothary & Company For South India Projects Limited,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 105335W
Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Managing Director,
DIN: 06554945
(Vipul N. Chauhan)
(Partner)
Membership No. 047846

Independent Director Chief Financial officer
Place: Mumbai NikithaTiparnapally Sanjay Chauhan
Date :25" August 2018 DIN:07399613

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25" August, 2018
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Annexure - V
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:
Overview of the Industry In FY 2018:

Over the last three decades and today very few offices and businesses remain untouched by the information
revolution’ The ability of the microchip to store and process information has radically changed business
life globally and in India as well. Many businesses have gone out of the play because they did not integrate
IT into their business operations when their competitors did, or because they did computerise but went
about it in the wrong way. Therefore it is vital that managers are well versed with the uses and potential
of IT. IT has relevance not only for business arena, at the same time it is beneficial to society and its
individual members also.

The global market for software and services is estimated to have grown to $1.3 Trillionl. IT Services is
estimated to have grown by 2.4% year on year, driven by digital demand. Your Company has historically
grown much faster than the market, driven by significant market share gains on account of a superior
capabilities, greater participation in the digital opportunity and track record in taking on and successfully
executing large, transformational programs.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECTOR: INDIAN PERSPECTIVE

The revenue aggregate of Information Technology- Software Development and Human Resource i.e.
activities of employment placement activities(IT-HR)industry is expected to grow dramatically and was
expected to reach multi-fold billions by the end of this decade and the following decades.

COMPANY OVERVIEW:

Your Company is an IT services in software development, consulting and Human Resource business
solutions organization offering transformational as well as outsourcing services i.e. listing employment
vacancies and referring or placing applicants for employment, where the individuals referred or placed are
not employees of the employment agencies. This also includes on-line employment placement agencies
due to which we are targeting every C-suite stakeholder. The Company uses all these, and its industry
leading suite of platforms to deliver high quality, high impact solutions leveraging the latest technologies
and Human Resources to customers.

STRATEGY:

Your Company has successfully navigated through multiple technology cycles over the last years, pivoting
and adapting each time to build relevant new capabilities and helping our clients realize the benefits of
that new technology. Our responsiveness, agility and adaptability to change have been core to our progess.
Customer-centricity is at the core of South India Projects Limited’ strategy, organization structure and
investment decisions. The philosophy has been to expand and deepen customer engagements by continually
looking for new areas in the customer’s operational value chain where your company can add value, and to
proactively invest in building newer capabilities to participate in those opportunities. This has resulted in a
continual expansion of every customer relationship in terms of the services consumed, revenue and share
of wallet. The willingness to invest in the relationship, the commitment to deliver outstanding outcomes
and the track record of execution excellence has resulted in high satisfaction levels and long, enduring
customer relationships.

Over time, every customer engagement results in the build-up of deep contextual knowledge of the
customer’s business which is leveraged to build innovative, transformative solutions.
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THE CHALLENGE OF CHANGE

A major feature of Information Technology is the changes that IT brings, those who speak of a revolution
from technology are really talking about change. Business and economic conditions change all the time;
a revolution is a discontinuity, an abrupt and dramatic series of changes in the natural evolution of
economies.

The major challenges involved that affect the industry of your company is the ever changing software
developments happening word wide as well as the need for continuous research for the improvements
required by the company to compete in the markets and developments in IT software also affects the
employment placement activities of the companies in the industry as the requirements of the clients
changes as per the developments with respect to the developments in the software in the industry and your
company is required to meet those needs.

STRENGTHS:

At SIPL we provide software and employment placement agency services i.e. listing employment vacancies
and referring or placing applicants for employment, where the individuals referred or placed are not
employees of the employment agencies. This also includes on-line employment placement agencies and
due to the effective internal control measures and continuous research and development the company is
doing good in terms of the industry competitors.

OPPORTUNITIES:

Your Company on its part is also well poised to seize new opportunities as they come and due to the ever
growing business opportunities in the IT Software developments and Human Resource sector with the
developments in technology there is a huge scope for growth to your Company. There are a numerous
client base which can be targeted for development of the scope and business.

WEAKNESS:

The Company is trying to strengthen its network base and link of clients that it deals with. The Company
has significant business presence which it is trying to increase.

THREATS

As the developments in technology with respect to software with respect to information technology is a
blessing it is also a huge threat due to the continuous developments in the same but as the your company has
good research and development encouragement it is not a major threat to your company. The overcoming
of various immediate regulations and policy changes in the countries where your company has clients also
is also considered to be a threat to the company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY:

Internal control systems and procedures in the Company are commensurate with the size and the nature
of Company’s business and are regularly reviewed and updated by incorporating changes in internal
regulatory provisions in order to safeguard the assets and to ensure reliability of financial reporting. There
is a continuous upgradation of knowledge with respect to software developments which is encouraged by
your Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

The Company continues to give priority to its human assets. The Company provides a fair and equitable
work environment to all its employees. The Company is continuously working to create and nurture an
atmosphere which is highly motivated and result oriented.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review, your Company achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 6,17,20,699 Lakhs
as against Rs. 4,00,28,924 Lakhs in the Previous Year and a Consolidated revenue from operations of Rs.
161,12,69,865 as against 19,66,83,855 as per Consolidated statements for the previous year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thumma
Director Director
[DIN: 06554945] [DIN:07033919]

Date: 25/08/2018
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure - VI
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SOUTH INDIA PROJECTS LTD
Regd. Office: 5 & 6, Fancy Lane,
Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal,
India.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by South India Projects Ltd (hereinafter called the Company).
The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company; its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2018
(Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, (subject to the observations
mentioned in this report ) in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March 2018 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder as amended;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder as amended;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder as amended;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (fo the extent as may be applicable to the Company);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
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Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(i) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and Guidelines, Directions and Instructions issued by
Reserve Bank of India prescribed thereunder. The Company is registered as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (Non-deposit accepting or holding) with Reserve Bank of India.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange viz Bombay Stock

Exchange of India Ltd (BSE) along with SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as applicable for respective periods.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject to following observations/
qualifications:

—  Certain relevant e-forms were pending for filing on MCA portal as on audit period which includes
filing of Annual Return, appointment of Managing Directors etc;

—  Website of the Company is not updated as per SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015;

—  Non-Compliance for appointment of Company Secretary and Internal Auditor for the aforesaid
Audit period;

—  Minutes are in process of updation.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, subject to observation as mentioned
hereinabove. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

All the resolutions were passed with consent of majority Directors and minutes were prepared
accordingly.
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I further report that:

- there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, guidelines and

standards.
For: M/s. REENA S. MODI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
Place: Mumbai REENA S. MODI
Date: 25/08/2018 {PROPRIETOR}
FCS: 25436
CP NO.12621
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To,

The Members,
SOUTH INDIA PROJECTS LTD,

Regd.

Office: 5 & 6, Fancy Lane,

Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal,

India.

I further state that my said report of the even date has to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of Secretarial/ Statutory Records is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on the audit.

2. Thave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records.

3. Thave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

4. Wherever required I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standard
is the responsibility of management. My examination is limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For: M/s. REENA S. MODI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Place: Mumbai REENA S. MODI

Date: 25/08/2018 {PROPRIETOR}

FCS: 25436

CP NO.12621



South India Projects Ltd. 37" Annual Report 2017-2018

SOUTH INDIA PROJECTS LTD.

STANDALONE
ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL YEAR
2017-18



South India Projects Ltd. 37" Annual Renort 2017-2018

% D. KOTHARY & CO.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
South India Projects Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements South India Projects Limited {“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frands and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility
Chur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi

T5176, "C' Wing, 7th Flaor, Mittal Court, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
Tel (B) #91 22 6638 1155 / 66 » Fax - +91 22 6638 1167 « E-mail - info@dkothary.com » Website
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% D. KOTHARY & CO.

Chartered Accountanis

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its profit,
total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3] of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have scught and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Statement including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specificd under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules there under.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

if) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
* Annexure B";
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() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which has impact on its financial
position in its financial statements.

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For D. Kothary & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 105335W
(=il
*'4 -\“{'\D
- Ve
(Vipul N. Chauhan} a2 MUMBAL 1
, : 4
(Partner) \’1* - 4,:\5’
Membership No. 047846 3

Place: Mumbai
Date : 28 May 2018
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Annexure A to Indepen Auditors’ rt
{Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

. Inrespect of its fixed assets:

) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets on the basis of available information.

b} As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable,
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

¢) According to the documents provided to us, we confirm that the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The Company is engaged in software consultancy services; hence this clause is not
applicable.

. The Company has not granted loan to body corporate, firm and parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues in respect of sales tax, service tax, withholding taxes,
provident fund, and employees’ state insurance, cess as applicable and any other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. There
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Custom Duty, Sales
Tax, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March
2018, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no statutory dues pending to be deposited on account of disputes pending
with various forums.

8. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans taken from financial institution.

el
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9. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable,

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit,

11. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in the books of accounts
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

12 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is net a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has acquired shares of a Foreign
Company and issued equity shares against acquisition, the requirement of section 42 of
the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with by the Company hence applicaion
of fund is not applicable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3{xv} of the Order is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934,

For D. Kothary & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn MNo. 105335W

(W
o~ :

{Vipul N. Chauhan)
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Annexure - B to The Independent Auditors” Report

To the Members of
South India Projects Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of South India Projects
Limited (“the Company™} as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered  Accountants of India ['ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and raintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the Hmely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Cr responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financi
reporting,
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/Mleaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made enly in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements dug to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
pvaluation of the internal financial contrals pver financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were pperating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For D. Kothary & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn Mo, 105335W

-

)

2 F-'!U:-ram):,

! =
oy "-:’_z. x

)

(Vipul N. Chauhan)
(Partner)
Membership No. 047846

Place: Mumbai
Date ; 28® May 2018
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South India Projects Limited
CIN: LTI00OWEI9SLPLO03M M2
Balance Sheet As at 31st March 2018

As at March 31, 2M& Asat Aprd 1, 20146
Amount In R Amount in Rs.

Notes

SL604

2415

BLie

TOTAL

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

{a) Equity Share Capital
i) Other Byuity

LIABILITIES
MNon Current Liabilities
{8) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings
) Dieferred tax kiabilities (Met)

Current Liabilites

{a)  Financial Lisbilities
(1) Borrawings .
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 17359

M)  Orher Currendt Liabilies A6TLITL 3,100,442

] Provisions 511 -

{d)  Current Tax Lisbilities (Met) 1,326,326 667,252

7.ML417 3.971.2%3

e TOTAL S67.576.19) 353,551,513
The sccomparying significant accounting policies amd notes form an sntegral part of the standalone firancial slatements
As per our report of even date

For Dkothary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants M__
Furm Registration Mo, 105335W

Maraging Director
Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Diin Mo, 06345

ng w@mm @L_E‘
Chief Financial Officer Irubependent Directar

Nikltha Tiparnapally
Drin Mo, 7399613
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South India Projects Limited
CIN: L72100WB1981 PLC034342
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2018

2017-2008

Particulars Notes Amountn Bi

Fevenue from operations 61,720,699
Orther incomes -

Total Revenue

Expenses:

Employee benefit expenses

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other Expenses

Taotal Expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Earlier year bax
Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Items will not be reclassified to profit & loss .
Ttems will be reclassified to profit & loss .

Total Comprehensive Income 10,867,552

Earning per share on Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach
- Basie & Diluted 216

The accompanying significant accounting podicics and notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For D Kothary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 105335W HM
" Managing Director
Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Vipul N. Chauhan Diin Mo, DE554045

Partner
Membership Mo 47846

E;:‘-u-f!.‘-{i M. t"... hhaodoa:
Independent Director Chief Financial Officer
Mikitha Tiparnapally Sanjay Chavhan
Diin Mo, (7399613 Pan Mo. AFLPCT749G
o Place : Hyderabad
Date ; 2Bth May 2018 Dt ; 28th May 2018
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South India Projects Limited
CIN: L72ZIDWEB1981 PLCO34342
Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2018

As st March 31, 2008]  As ar March 21, 2017

Pthxian Amount [n Ba. Amount In Rs.

r Canh Flow From Crperating Activities :

Mt profit before tax a5 per statement of profit and Joss 6,778,051
Adpstments for ;
Depreciation 112967
Provision for Standard Assets 2511 .
Gain on safe of fvestmient fER L)
[rvterest Expenses 196,454 S350
|Chperating Cash Flow Befare Changes in Warking Capital 15,638,154 6,857 B

Changes in current assets and labilities
[Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (2, 281,549) {3057.270)
[Increase)/ Decroass in Lowns (5019, 608) (#,665.755]
(Increase)f Decrease in Other Current and Mon-Current Assets 13.307,173)] [{539,578)
Increase [Decrsse) in Other Current Liabilitves 1540870 2TE2,I43

Cash Generated From Operations 11,080,693 1,177,504

Payment of Taxes (Net of Refunds) [3,068,324) {1.707.865)
MNet Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A) 8,012 369 (524,360

B, Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Payment of property, plant & equipments & Intangibles {5.,979,837) {1,517, 508)
(Purchase)/ sale of Envestment - e At ]
Interest imoome B -
Met Cash Flow From Investment Activities (B) (5.5749,837) (1,484,855

C, Cash Flow From Flnancing Activities
Divicbend Paid (inclading dividend Tax) (3,025,042} 2
(Repayment) / Borrowing from financial institebions Others 3,656,480 32402250
Firvancial Expenyes (196,454) (.
Net Cash From [ (Used In) Financing Activities () 315,500

Wet Increase In Cash O Cash Equivalents (A= B+C) 2463596 (1689335

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning OF The Year 383,738 L0THE

Cash And Cash Equivalents As Af The End Of The Year 247,635 8,7

The acoompanying sigrificant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of (he standalone financial statements
Az per oar report of even date

For Dkothary & Co.. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Trarered Accountants
Fur Regstration Mo, 105335W a }f\' =
P Maruging Director

T e Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Vipul X. Chauhan Ty Tl ) Din Mo, DE554945

Partwes [ : '*.
Sembemhup Mo (7846

"_E.._I _:tt._ T n.!'-"‘ iy ﬂ.'il -L'i!\.{"'-‘-"‘

Independent Director Chief Findncial Offioer
Nikitha Tiparnapally Sanjay Chauhan

Dan Mo, B7Y9%13 Pan No. AFLPCT745G
Flace : Mumbai Place - Hysderabad

Date : 3th Mav 2018 Date - 281h May 2018
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Note A - Equity share Capital

[PARTICULARS
As il 1st April 2016

Changes i liquity share capizal disring the year
A3 st st March 2007

‘Changes in Equity share capital disring the year
As i Fhst March 208

Mote B : Other Equity

Fasticulars

Balansw &t al Apeil 1, 2016
Prodit for ihe year
‘Om sorount on acquisétion of sulwidiary
Oty Coenprehensive [soomse for the year, net
of ncome Tas
Total Comprehensive Income for Lhe year
Ciividienslsy Tax of Dividend
Reversal of Dvidends Tax on Dividend
[Short) £ excess provislon for

e Retalned Earnings
Ime-s-tmnm
Profit for the year
‘Oitbwer Comnpeehensive Ircome for the year, met
of Incoame Tax:
Total Comprehensive Income fior the pear
Drividends, Tax on Dvvidend (029,043}
Rieverial of Dividends Tax on Dividend - -
Trazsfer from Retalned Earnirg F-'imyai
| Balance as al March 31, 2018 I1A30,065

As per our report of even date

For Dicothaery & Co. For and cn beball of the Board of Diredlons

Place : Hyderabad
Dt 'Zﬂhm,’ 28
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Company overview
South India Projects Limited ("the company”) has its place of business is in Hyderabad
and registered office is in Kolkatta.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2(15 as amended by the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016

For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India and complied with the accounting standards (Previous GAAP)
as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable, and the presentation
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Adfairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section
133 read with Rule 4A of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 as amended and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively, “Ind AS") with effect from
April 1, 2017 and the Company is required to prepare its financial statements in
accordance with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2017. These financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first financial statements the company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS.

The transition to Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First- Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards with the date of transition as April 01, 2016.
There is no transition effects during the transition period.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with
the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated. These financial statements comply
in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. All assets and liabilities are classified
into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of less than twelve months or
based on the criteria of realisation/settlement within twelve months period from the
balance sheet date.

Key accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements required the management to exercise
judgment and to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates, The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is

U




South India Projects Ltd. 37" Annual Report 2017-2018

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future period.

d) Functional and presentation currency
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Indian Fupee.
Foreign currency transaction
Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rate that approximates the
prevalent exchange rate on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the year-end rate. Non-monetary assets and labilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

. Significant Accounting Policies
The Company has applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Fevenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts exclusive of excise duty receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The company recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company's activitics, as described below,

Sale of Goods and services

Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are
transferred to the buyer as per terms of contract. Income and fees from services are
accounted as per terms of relevant contractual agreements/arrangements.

Revenue from sale of power is recognised when delivered and measured based on rates
as per bilateral contractual agreements with buyers and at rate arrived at based on the
principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations as notified by the regulatory
bodies, as applicable.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of relevant contracts or by
using the effective interest method, where applicable.

Investment income

Incomes from investments are accounted on an accrual basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Transition to Ind AS:

The Company has elected to continue with the net carrying value of all its property, plant

and equipment recognized as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) as per the previous GAAP

and use that carrying value as its deemed cost.

i) Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of
acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any,
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All repairs and maintenance are charged
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to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

ii) Depreciation: Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other items of Property, Plant
and Equipment are provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of
the asset or as prescribed in Schedule [I to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on
technical evaluation of the asset. Estimated useful life of items of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Type of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Freehold Land N.A

Furniture & Fittings 10 years

Computers & Printers | 3 years

Motor Viehicles 8 years

Office Equipment’s 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that an asset or a group of assets is impaired. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised within operating profit in the Income
statement.

¢) Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

i} Financial assets at amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months
after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are
measured initally at fair value which usually represents cost plus transaction costs
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment loss if any.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security and
other deposits, cash and cash equivalent, employee and other advances.

ii) Equity investments/Investment in LLP - Investment in subsidiaries and LLP are
stated at cost. All other equity investments are measured at fair value, except for
certain unquoted equity investments which are carried at cost where the fair value of
these investments cannot be reliably measured,

iii) Financial Assects at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) -
For investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the company has
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exercised the option to classify the investment as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on
the investment are recognized in OCL The accumulated gains or losses on such
investments are not recycled to the Statement of Profit and Loss even on sale of such
investment.

iv) Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - Financial assets other
than the equity investments and investment classified as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. These include surplus funds invested in mutual funds et

v) Impairment of financial assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For
trade and other payable maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying value approximates fair value due to short maturity,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Employee benefits

The Company operates varicus post-employment schemes, including both defined
benefit and defined contribution plans:

Defined contribution plan;

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as contribution to Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance Corporation, National Pension Scheme and Labours Welfare
Fund are charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount
of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees,
The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has
no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of an
actuarial valuation by an actuary appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit
method at the end of each financial year. The liability or asset recognised in the Balance
Sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The liability so provided is paid to a Trust administered by the Company, which
in turn invests in eligible securities to meet the liability as and when it acerues for payment
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in future. Any shortfall in the value of assets over the defined benefit obligation is
recognised as a liability with a corresponding charge to the Staternent of Profit and Loss.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on Gevernment bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur directly in Other
Comprehensive Income. They are included in retained eamnings in the Statement of
changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailmenits are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the cbligation.

These estimates are reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. If the effect of the Hime value of money is material, provisions are
discounted. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre- tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

f} Income Tax

a) Current Imcome Tax
Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with local laws of various jurisdiction where the Company operates.

b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date,
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Current and Deferred Tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to
items recognised directly in Other Comprehensive income or equity, in which case the
deferred tax is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and equity respectively,

gl Leases
As a lessee
Lease of assets, where the Company, as a lessee, has substantally assumed all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases, Assels acquired on finance leass
are capitalised and depreciated as per Company’s policy on Property, Flant and
Equipment. Finance lease are measured at the lease’s inception at the lower of fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings
or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each year.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
Statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases,
As a lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as
income in the Statement of profit or Joss on a straight- line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected gencral inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.

Cash flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipt or payments and item of income or expense
associated with investing or financing cash-flows. The cash flow from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

The Company presents Basic and Diluted carnings per share data for its equity shares.
Basic and Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities exist when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one
of more uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the Company, or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount cannat be reliably estimated,

= . E}\_'_
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Contingent liabilities are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project cost
during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use ie, when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual
borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a
project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a
weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and
loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted,

Useful economic lives and impairment of other assets

Property, plant and equipment other than mining rights are depreciated over their useful
economic lives, Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and
any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying
values. The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment, for possible
impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying
values of the assels may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and
equipment for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as
changes in prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment
are taken into consideration.

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the
recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount
rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.

<Dden
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Motes to the fimancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

a f March 11, 2018 st Aprl 1, 2016
PARTICULARS PP T Ameus In Fs.

Mot § - lnv estments (Moa Curmest)

Insestment in Sabaldisory (Nen Tradaj
1450 common sbock of INIT Technologles INC of 15 each

Laveriment s Oilers
Iestment
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An xt March 71, 2018 As 3t March 31, 207 As at Aprd 1, 206

FARTA Amount [n Rs. Amount [n RS, Agrouarit In Bs.

Mote 8 - Cash And Cash Equivalents

‘Balances with barks
(i} In current socownts
{Cash cn hand

|Note 92 Loans (Carrent)

lewber Corporate Deposil
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Nutulnllzfm.-lnd.l] statements for the year ended March 31, 208

BOTE 11 fu) i BOUITY CAPTTAL

An at March 31, 2015
Amounl In R,

As ot March 31. 217
Arnoint in Ra.

As st Apeil 1, 208
Amount in Ra

PARTICULARS

AUTHORISED SHARE CAFITAL

300,00,000 (Previous Year 65,00.000) Eguiry Shares of s 10 each
Total

W) 00, O
300,000,000

e5000000 [ SL0GRO000

ISSLIED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
50325 (Previcas Year 50,33, 500 E-!.u.ql Shares of Bs.10 each fully padd up
Total

50,333,850
50,333,850

NOTE 11 (b) :- The company bas only one class of exquity with a par value of Ra. 10/~ per share, Each balder of equity shases is entitle (0 one vale pee
share,

MOTE 11 {e) - The reconcilistion of ths b
oul below

of shares oaistaading ond ihe of shars eapital & st Mareh 31, 2018 and Mareh 3T, 2007 b8 st

FARTICULARS As ut March 31, 2008
Me. of shares

held

As ai March 31, 2017
Mo, of shares held

Amoand [n Hs. Amount In Rs.

Equity Shares
Mumber of shares a1 the beginnirg 5,033,388 50,333,880
A : Fusther Issue of Shares on aaquiasiton of sabsidiany - L]
Lessc Buy Back - -
Mamber of shares af the end 5,003,388 Si0.3%3 850

3,003,388
L0000

30,333,880
000,000

HLXEERD

033288

NOTE 11 (d] - Dietails of shares held by vach shambolder halding moee than 5% shans:

Class of shares / Mame of sharehalder As wl March 31, 2008 As at March 31, 2017

Mo, of ghares
held

% holding

Mo of shares held

% hetding

|iﬂ6udhm Reddy Thumma

lagam Mohan Reddy Thamma
Dnml.:kndd" Thaarewna
[ Redddy Thumsna

FALE ]
470000
220,008
[

ALY
LR
LR
B3

211946
A7L00
320,000
A0

4110%
B%
3%
B56%
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RTICUL As at March 51, 2018 | As at March 31, 307 As at April 1, 2006
F Amosnt In Ra. Amonnk In B Amount [n B
Mose 12 Other Equity
General Reserve N 52LEN 31,522,620
tory Reserve 10,215 456 9314514
Add: Tranafer from profit and los aseount 2,173,510 900,542
12,358,966 10,215,456
16,768,085 13,154,317
Add: Profit / (Loss] far the year 1057552 4504710
7538 637 17.660.007
Tramsber to statulory reserve 2,173,510 900,342
Insterion Divichersd 25064604 -
Tax on Dividend 512348 .
22,433,084 15,758 085
Total 3064571 258,504, 161
Mot 13 > Bomowings (Noa Current]
Term loans {Secared)
WViehicle Loan frem financial institutions 335387 655,681
— Telal 3.363,571 65565 1

- Wehicl: Loan from Chelarandalam Inv
interest pabe 13% and mubarity o1 Febraary 2020

ard finance Compasny Lid i to be paid in 48 equal monthly installment carrying

mararity af January 2023,

- Viehicde Loan from Kotak Mahindea Prime Lid is to be paid in 80 equal monthly instaliment earrying inferest rate 9.52% and

190,354 A ML A0G
Total e HA08
Nake 15 ;- Borrowings (Current]
Uniaecured
From Director 29,000 - 500,000
Total 325,000 - SOM000
hiaike 16 - Other Finsncial Liskities {Cument}
{a} Crrent maturities of long berm borrowngs 77,269 173,599 -

I Testal
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As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 217 As st April 1, 26

PARE Amount [n Rs. Amount In Rs, Amount In Bs

{a) Statutory liabilities
() Salary Payable
{c} Other Payable
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T 6-2017
PARTICULARS f tin s,

|Note 19 ;- Revenue from Crperations
Service Income
E.mhm

in on Sale of Investments

Contribution to Provident Fund and Cther Funds
Employee welfare and other amenities

Total
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PARTICULARS

Rent, Rates f Tanes

Fent Expenses

Telephone & Intermet Charges
Insurance Vehdche

Electricity Expenses

Forelgn Bxchange Fluctuation
Printing, Expenses

Repiars & Maintainance
Provision for Standard Assets
Conveyance & Travelling
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SOUTH IMNDIA PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN: LTIOWH I PLODMME
Motes to the Flnancial Statements for the year ended 1ot March, 2018
D Releted party transactiong

Mﬁhﬂhmﬂl‘mﬂ‘hﬂ As M), the disclosures of trarasctions with the related parties sre ghoen belen
By Relsthonships during the yesr
A} Kry Managerial Personne)
Jagan Mohan Reddy Thizmma
Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thuseuma
Sanjay Mahendra Chauhan (TP}

1]

Wholly owned subgldisry
JHIT Technologles IMC (with effect from 16th March 2017)

232 Related party runsactions

{A) Trasactions with related parties daring the year :
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SOUTH INDIA FROJECTS LIMITED
CIN: LraomwB1981 PLOED
Motea to the Financlal Statements for the year ended st March, 2018

M Earnings pes share

Particulars

et prodif after tax as per statement of profitand loss 4,504,770
average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year
NMominal value per equity share 0
& Diluted Exrnings per share 144

I the opinkon of the Board, the value of realization of curnent sssets in the ordinary course of business would not be leas than
the amount at which they ane statsd in the balance sheet.

2%  Om the basis of the Information available with the com pany, there are no micro and small scale business enberprises, (o whom
umm;mmwm-nwmthmmﬁdm-umn.m

77 Previous Year figares
Plgures of previous year are regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever neceasary to correspond to figures of the

Fox and om behalf of Board of Directors

R

y
¢

- o

MUMBAI }ea

w

5

Din Mo, 07399613
Flace :
Dabe: 28th May 1018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Members of
South India Projects Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of South India Projects
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries ("the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31u March, 2018, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”} that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of cash flow and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on these consalidated financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under,

75176,'C Wm«g. .fth Floor. Muttal c:um-t Mariman Paoint, Mumbal 4E|IZI 021
Ted (B) +591 22 66368 1155 /66 « Fax : +91 22 6638 1167 » E-mail . info@@dkothary.com « Website wdkmharrfdw
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and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated Ind financial statements, whether due to frand or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company’'s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditor in terms of their report referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at 31st March, 2018, their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income), their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial information of subsidiary included in the consolidated financial
results whose financial information reflect total assets of Bs. 42,23,16,576/ - as at March 31, 2018,
total revenues of Rs. 160,39,27,764/-, total net profit after tax of Rs, 3,32,89,636/- for the period
ended on that date, as considered in the comsolidated financial results, This financial
information has been audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us and our
opinion on the consolidated financial results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of other
auditor.

Cur opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
relance on the work done and the report of the other auditor,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

-3t 12 3538 1155.’!3-6- Fax : +EI‘I 225&3&116?-1: mall |Mp@mlhawmm-wabm www dkothary com
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=i In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
5o far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules there under.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as on
31w March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are
disqualified as on 31w March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

(f) In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our infermation and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which has impact on its financial
position in its financial statements,

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses,

ifi. There were no amounts which were required o be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group.

For D. Kothary & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No. 105335W)

Vipul N. Chauhan
Partner
Afembership No. 047846
Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 May, 2018.
75176, 'C"Wing, Tth Floor, Mittal Court, Manman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 3st March 2018

As 2t March 31, 28

T Amount In Ka.

As at March 3, 2007
A In Rs.

Asat Apnd 1, 2006
Amount In Bs.

ASSETS
Mo Current Assets
{a)  Property, Plant and Equipment
b Goodwill on Consolidation
(b}  Financial Assets
(i) Envestonents
fc)  Dther non-curment assets

Current Assels
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and eash equivalents
(iv) Loans
()  Oher carrent assels

300,483
171937121

178442

183,115,027

THAILIE
619,914
130,699.270
4,191,894

413,524,008

TOTAL

597,054,085

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(s)  Equity Share Capital
(8  Other Equity

LIABILITIES
Mon Cerrent Liabilities
{a) Financlal Lisbilities
{1} Borrowings
[  Deferred tax Liabilities [MNet)

Current Liabilites
(a)  Financial Liabilities

(i} Barrowings
(i) Trade Payable
(i) Other Financial Liabilities
Oaher Current Liabilities
Provisions.
Current Tax Liabilities [Niet)

5,281,241
190,354

Ny
54,508

5ATL595

124,765

325,000
53,895,737
1462410
206,073,342
211,511

M 692,508

1627857
24,766,335
BOL950
108,378,921

45,0096, 057

296,670,909

40,479,191

TOTAL

]

547,035,035

The sccompanying significant sccounting poliches and nobes form an integral part of the standalone fnancial statements

As per pur report of even date

For Dkothary & Co..

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstration Mo, 105335W
—

Place ; Mumibad
Drate : Z6th hay NS

For and on behalf of the Board of

Manuaging Director

Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma

Din 1o, 06554945

o TR A l:"f\.'l!.'-'.r.{-'w"\
Sanjay Chauhan
Pan No. AFLPCT749G
Flace : Hyderabad
Date : Z8th May 2018

DiErectors

independent Director
Nikitha Tiparmapally
Din Mo, (FIF613
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South India Projects Limited
CIN: L72100WE1981 PLCO34342
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2018

Particulars

2016-2017
Amount In Rs.

2017-2018

Notes
Amount In Rs.

Revenue from operations
Other incomes

Total Revenue

Expenses:

Employes benefit expenses

Finance cost

‘Dtprbciauon and amortization expenses
Chiher Expenses

Total Expenses

FProfit before lax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Earfier year tax
Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Ttems will not be reclassified to profit & loss

Items will be reclassified to profit & loss

Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign
operations

Total Comprehensive Incomse

Earning per share on Equity Shares of Rs 10 each
- Basic & Diluted

19 1,611,269865

196,683 855

1,611,269.865 196,683 855

1,355,994,268 162,576,884
1972109 395,289
2.479,073 9,592

161,423,266 19,235,250

1,541,868,716 182,557,015

E9,401,145 14,126,840

25,210,718 5,247 307

(72,602) 120,009
102

8,705,391

153,105

44,310,293

877

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For D Kethary & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership MNo.: (47846

Flace | Mumbai
Date : 25th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing Director
Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
[Hn No, 06554945

I@du;;ﬁnt Director Chiel Financial Offioer
Nikitha Tiparnapally Sanjay Chauhan
Din Mo. 07359613 Pan Mo, AFLPCTSG
Place : Hyderabad

Drate : 28th May 2018

au Lt v
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South India Projects Limited
CIN: L7ZI00WEB1961 PLC034342
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2018

Particulary

As at March 31,
Amount In Rs,

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Met profit before b as per statément of profit and loss

Depreciation

Pronvision for Standard Assets

Loss on sale of Assets

I Expenses

Operating Cash Flow Before Changes in Workdng Capital

Changes in current assets and liabilities

{Increase) Decreass in trade receivables

{lncrease) Decrease in Loans

(Increase) Decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Increase | (Decrease) in Other Trade payable

Cash Genersted From Operations

Payment of Taxes (Net of Refunds)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A)

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Payment of property, plant & equipments & Intangibles
(Purchase)/ sale of Investment

Intenest income

Met Cash Flow From Investment Activities (B)

Cash Flaw From Financing Activities :
Dividend Paid {including dividend Tax)
(Repayment] / Barrowing from financial institations/ Others
Finanrial Expenscs
et Cash From / (Used In) Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase In Cash Or Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year

Cash And Cash Equivalents of Subsidiary at the beginning
Cash And Cash Equivalents As At The End Of The Year

14,126,840
L4707 349,562
172590

1,572,109 395,289
T4.246,433 14,871,721

67,061,729} {19,196,181)

10,148,454 7.417.315)
(32.780,411) 2418912
97,847,527 (7,204,507}
29,119,402 -

111,529,685 (16,527 460)

(35,541,204) (4,849,175
75,985 391 (21,376,636}

(1.517,608)
32754

(7.6358,345)

[7.635,345)

[1484,854)

(B, 446,754)
(395,285
(B.B42.044)

{31,703,533)

2,073,064
- 0,250,384
5,392,356 619,914

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the standalons financial statements

As per our repart of even date

For Dkothary & Co..
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 1053351

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

Managing Dircclor
Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma
Din Mo, DES54M5

@LIL
Independent Disector

Nikitha Tiparnapally
Din Moo 07399613

Place : Hydersbad

sy PO

Chief Financial Odficer
Sanjay Chauhan
Pan Mo. AFLPCTSG
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Consolidated Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Company overview
South India Projects Limited ("the company") has its place of business is in Hyderabad
and registered office is in Kolkatta.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended by the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016

For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India and complied with the accounting standards (Previous GAAP)
as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable, and the presentation
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section
133 read with Rule 4A of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 as amended and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {collectively, “Ind AS"} with effect from
April 1, 2017 and the Company is required to prepare its financial statements in
accordance with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2017. These financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first financial statements the company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS.

The transition to Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First- Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards with the date of transition as April 01, 2016,
There is no transition effect during the year from the date of transition as April 01, 2016,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with
the historical cost convention, uness otherwise stated. These financial statements comply
in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Fules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. All assets and liabilities are classified
into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of less than twelve months or
based on the criteria of realisation/settlement within twelve months period from the
balance sheet date.

Subsidiaries included in consolidation

MName of | Country of | Nature of Business | Controlling Interest
Enterprises incorporation
JNIT Technologies | USA IT Consultancy

INC
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" Consolidated Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

¢) Key accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements required the management to exercise
judgment and to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future period.
Functional and presentation currency
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee.
Foreign currency transaction
Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rate that approximates the
prevalent exchange rate on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the year-end rate. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

. Significant Accounting Palicies
The Company has applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
the finandial statements.

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of South India Projects
Limited and its subsidiaries, being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where
the Group has power over the investee or is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the
ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to align the accounting policies in line with accounting policies of the Group.
Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising
from intra- Group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts exclusive of excise duty receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The company recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company’s activities, as described below.

Sale of Goods and services
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Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are
transferred to the buyer as per terms of contract. Income and fees from services are
accounted as per terms of relevant contractual agreements/ arrangements.

Revenue from sale of power is recognised when delivered and measured based on rates
as per bilateral contractual agreements with buyers and at rate arrived at based on the
principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations as notified by the regulatory
bodies, as applicable.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of relevant contracts or by
using the effective interest method, where applicable

Investment income

Incomes from investments are accounted on an accrual basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Transition to Ind AS:

The Company has elected to continue with the net carrying value of all its property, plant
and equipment recognized as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as its deemed cost.

i) Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of

acquisition Jess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All repairs and maintenance are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation: Depreciation of other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are
provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical evaluation
of the asset. Estimated useful life of items of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Type of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Freehold Land MN.A

| Furniture & Fittings 10 years

Computers & Printers 3 years

Motor Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment's 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate,

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that an asset or a group of assets is impaired. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised within operating profit in the Income
statement.

¢) Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months
aftter the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are
measured initially at fair value which usually represents cost plus transaction costs
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment loss if any.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security and
other deposits, cash and cash equivalent, employee and other advances.

ii) Equity investments - Investment in subsidiariesassociates are stated at cost. All other
equity investments are measured at fair value, except for certain unquoted equity
investments which are carried at cost where the fair value of these investments cannot
be reliably measured.

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) -
For investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the company has
exercised the option to classify the investment as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on
the investment are recognized in OCL The accumulated gains or losses on such
investments are not recycled to the Statement of Profit and Loss even on sale of such
investment.

iv) Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - Financial assets other
than the equity investments and investment classified as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. These include surplus funds invested in mutual funds etc.

v) Impairment of financial assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
isimpaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For
trade and other payable maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying value approximates fair value due to short maturity.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
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intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, less any provision for
obsolescence. Cost is determined on the following basis:
purchased raw material and traded goods are recorded at cost on a first-in, first-out
(“FIFO") basis.
finished products are valued at raw material cost plus costs of conversion, comprising
labour costs and an attributable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on
normal levels of activity and are moved out of inventory on a FIFO basis.
Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Employee benefits

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined
benefit and defined contribution plans:

Defined contribution plan:

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as contribution to Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance Corporation, National Pension Scheme and Labours Welfare
Fund are charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount
of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.
The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has
no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of an
actuarial valuation by an actuary appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit
method at the end of each financial year. The liability or asset recognised in the Balance
Sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets, The liability so provided is paid to a Trust administered by the Company, which
in turn invests in eligible securities to meet the liability as and when it accrues for payment
in future. Any shortfall in the value of assets over the defined benefit obligation is
recognised as a liability with a corresponding charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on Government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur directly in Other
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Comprehensive Income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of
changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre- tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense,

g} Income Tax

a) Current Income Tax
Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with local laws of various jurisdiction where the Company operates.

b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current and Deferred Tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to
items recognised directly in Other Comprehensive income or equity, in which case the
deferred tax is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and equity respectively.

h) Leases
As a lessee
Lease of assets, where the Company, as a lessee, has substantially assumed all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired on finance lease
are capitalised and depreciated as per Company’s policy on Property, Plant and
Equipment. Finance lease are measured at the lease’s inception at the lower of fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
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corresponding lease rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings
or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each year.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
Statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Az a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as
income in the Statement of profit or loss on a straight- line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases,

Cash flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipt or payments and item of income or expense
associated with investing or financing cash-flows. The cash flow from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

The Company presents Basic and Diluted earnings per share data for its equity shares.
Basic and Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities exist when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount cannot be reliably estimated.
Contingent liabilities are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project cost
during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use ie. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual
borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is
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deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a
project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a
weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and
loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

m) Useful economic lives and impairment of other assets

Property, plant and equipment other than mining rights are depreciated over their useful
economic lives. Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and
any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying
values. The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment, for possible
impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying
values of the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and
equipment for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as
changes in prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment
are taken into consideration.

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the
recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount
rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets,
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PARTICULARS

As at March 31, 2018
Amount [n R

As &t March 31, 2017
A £ In Ra.

Mute 6 1= Othver Mon Current Assets
[Unsecered, Conaldered Good)

(4] Secusity deposits
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As at March 31, 2018 As af March 31, 2007 As st April 1, 2016

il 2 Amount In R, Amount in Bs. Amsant In Bs.

Note 8 - Cash And Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks
{1} Ini Carrent accounts
Cash on hand
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NOTEL fa) ;= EQUITY CAPTTAL

[ PARTICULARS

As ai Masch 31, 208
Amgusit In Bs.

As a1 March 30, 217
Asnoant In Ra

W at Apell 1, 2016
Amecrurit b Bs.

AUTHORISED SHARE CAFITAL
00,000 (Previoas Year 850000 Eqaity Shares of Fs 10 esch

5,000,000

Todal

£3,[K00.000

1SSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FAID UP

50,133,880

3,388 {Previous Year 50.33,385) Equaty Shanes of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Total

B0 AR ERD

NOTE 11 (b} = The company has only one tiass of equity with a par value of Ra. 10/ per share. Each bolder of equity shares it entitle b onhe vote pée

sdane.

MNOTE 11 {e) = The reconcillation of the number of shares oatstanding and the anvount of share capital ss ot March 31, 2018 amd Masch 31, 2017 is et

cat beiow

PARTICULARS

As af March 31, 2018 _

As at March 31, 2117

Mo, of shares
heid

Amaunt In Ba.

Mo, of shares held

Amaunt in Rs.

Eiguity Skases

INumiber of shares at the beginning

Addd | Further [ssue of Shanes on scquisition of subsidiary
Lssa: Bary Back

5,003,363

24,333,480

1,083,388
OO0

30,333,850
OG0

|Mumber of shares at the eed

5,033,368

50,333 860

5,000,358

50333880

WOTE 11 (d) = Details of shares held by each sharehalder hodding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares [ Mame of skarehold

As ut March 31, 2018

Az at March 31, 2017

Mo of shares

held

% holding

Mo of shares held

% palding

Exuity shages with yoting rights
Jomeph Sudbeer Reddy Thuamena
Jagan Miohan Reddy Thumma
Dersis Reddy Thamens

L Eeddy Thumma

21194
ATO,D00
30000
220,000

4 11%
9%
B3R
B3N
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As al March 1, 2008 | Asat harch 31, 2007 Aaat April 1, 2016

ol Asnoand In Ha Amiouril In Fa, Asniceand In Fa.

Mote 1> Cebyer Eguilty
Cemeral Reserve

Securities premium

Statulory Reserve
Adid: Trasader from profit and loss sccount

Porelgn Currency Tramslstion Reserve

Serpius (Deficit] i Statement of Profil aod Loss
Cipening balance
Adid: Profiz | (Loas) for the year

Lesac
Tranwher b0 Sahalony reserve
Interim Dividerd
Tax on Dividerd

Toilal

Nabe 13 - Borrowimgs (Mon Cerreni)

| Tegen leass [Secused]
Wehicle Lown from financlal istitutions S22 AnoaET

Tolal 5,281,401 20357

< Vehicl Loan from Cholamandabam b n fmunce Comnpany Lid & 1o be paid in &8 equal monthly instaliment cacrying
Indepest rade 13% and mabarity at February 3031,

- Wehicle Loan fram Kotak Mahindsa Prime Lid i o be paid in 80 equal monthly installment carrying, interest rase 9.52% and mahurity
1 Jarsiary T3,

MOTE 14:- Deferred Tax Liability inet)
| T ebbect of ibeens covatituting deferred tax labilgy

Totsl

| M 15 - Borrowinga (Curent)

Secwred

Line of Credit - Santendar Bank

| All the assets of the company are pledged as collateral
iowards the line of oredit including unlimibed gaurantes of |
the sharehokders)

Total

Hiwte 16 - Other Financisl Liskilities (Cwrrent)

i} Current maharities of long term barniwings

[ Total
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ARTICUL An at March 31, 2008 | As st March 31, X7 Aa st April 1. 216
i ae Amount In R, Amcuri {5 R Asnount tn Ba

biode 17 - Prowisbons (Current)
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PARTICULARS

2T-H8

Amount In Rs.

Note 19: Revenue from operations

Service Income
Interest Income

189,263,501
TAITMS
3339

196,580,855

bution to Prowident Fund snd Other Funds
Employes wellare and other amenities

Total
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LTI : 2017-2018 2062017
g Amount in s, Amount in s

1708

1,972,109

Conveyance & Travelling
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e o T LT

@ e Dsdien Acvpuntimg Standard (et As 24, the disclesicnes of tramsactions with the relabed panies.are given bebow
I Erlvioesbips durimg the year
By Mansgerial Personned
faganm Mohan Heddy Thumma
Jeseph Suddbewr Rixddy Thumena
Samjay Mahendra Chauban [CHY
237 Related party ransactions

A} Transactions with related parties duriag the year |

Particulam March Y1218 Sarch 31207

Jagan Mohan Bmbdy Thumema
Samiy Slahemlrs Chamhan

&80, 000
2,100,000
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24 Eamings per share

Farticulars Mdarch 31, 2017

Mt profit alber b as per statement of profit snd less B.70539

righted average rumber of equity shares outstanding during the year 5.013,348 RRFARI
Mo inal value per equity share 10 1]
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share ATT 179

In the opinion of the Board, the value of realization of current assets in the ordinery course of busipess would net be less than
the amount at which they are stabed in the balance ihert

O the bashi of the indormution available with the company, there are o micr and small scale business enaerprises, 10 wham
the company ewes duses, which are outstanding for msore than 45 days as a March 31, 2018,

Proviows Year figures

Figures of previous year are regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary fo corrmipond to fagures ol the
CUREFTE Vear,

From trus extract of Books of Accounts

For . Kothary & Co Far gnd on behalf of Board of Direciors
Chartened Accountants

Firen Regisiration No. 105335

— oAl
Ty ooy M Cheln
e
Chief Fi CHficer
Sanjay Chauhan
Fan Mo AFLPCTTG
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SOUTH INDIA PROJECTS LTD

[CIN: L72100WB1981PLC034342]

Registered office: 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.
Corp. office: #164, Survey No. 48, 4th Floor, Kavuri Hills, Madhapur, Hyderabad,
Telangana - 500081, India.
Telephone No.: 040-43366058
Email: soothindiaprojectslimited@gmail.com| Website: www.southindiaprojectslimited.in

Form No. MGT-11

FORM OF PROXY
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of Member(s) Email Id
Registered Address  : Folio No.
*DP Id.
No. of Shares held : *Client Id.
* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
1/We, being a member(s) of shares of South India Projects Ltd hereby appoint:
1. Mr./Mrs. Email Id:
Address :
Signature:
2. Mr./Mrs. Email Id:
Address :
Signature:
3. Mr./Mrs. Email Id:
Address :
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 37" Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held on Saturday, September 29, 2018 at 03.30 pm (IST) at 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001, West
Bengal, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:



** I wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Sr. Resolutions Number of For Against
No. Shares held

Ordinary Business

1. | To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements
(Standalone & Consolidated) of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2017 together with the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditor’s thereon.
2. | To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy
Thumma [DIN: 06554945],, who retires by rotation, and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
3. | To ratify the appointment of M/s. D. Kothary & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 105335W) as statutory
auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration
Special Business

4. | To consider the issue bonus shares in the ratio 4:1 by capitalizing
the free reserves of the Company to the extent of Rs. 20,13,35,520
(Rupees Twenty Crores Thirteen Lakhs Thirty Five Thousand Five
Hundred and Twenty only)

** This is optional. Please put a tick mark (x) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. If a
member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all of the Resolutions, the proxy will be entitled to vote in
the manner he/ she thinks appropriate. If a member wishes to abstain from voting on particular resolution, he/she should
write “Abstain” across the boxes against the Resolution.

Signature(s) of the Member(s)

Affix One
rupee
1. Revenue
Stam
2. P
3.
Signed this day of 2018
Notes:

1. The Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before the commencement
of the Meeting at 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the company.

3. In the case of the Joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to
the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of the Members.

4. The form of proxy confers authority to demand or join in demanding a poll.

5. The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting at
the meeting.

6. In case a member wishes his/her votes to be used differently, he/she should indicate the number of shares under the columns
“For” or “Against’ as appropriate.



Attendance Slip

37" Annual General Meeting

SOUTH INDIA PROJECTS LTD

[CIN: L72100WB1981PLC034342]

Registered office: 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.
Corp. office: #164, Survey No. 48, 4th Floor, Kavuri Hills, Madhapur, Hyderabad,
Telangana - 500081, India.
Telephone No.: 040-43366058
Email: soothindiaprojectslimited@gmail.com| Website: www.southindiaprojectslimited.in

Date Venue Time

September 29, 2018 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India ~ 03:30 PM (IST)

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING VENUE.

Folio No. *DP ID No. *Client ID No.
Name of the Member Mr./Mrs. Signature
Name of the Proxyholder Mr./Mrs. Signature

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
I certify that I am the registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Saturday, September 29, 2018 at
03:30 PM (IST) at 5 & 6, Fancy Lane, Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.

Signature of the Member/ Proxy

Note: Electronic copy of the Notice of the 36" Annual General Meeting with the Attendance slip and Proxy form is being
sent to all the members whose email id is registered with the Company/ Depository Participant unless any meeting has been
requested for a hard copy of the same. Shareholders receiving electronic copy and attending the Annual General Meeting can
print copy of this Attendance Slip.

Physical copy of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent in the
permitted mode(s) to all members whose email 1d is not registered or has requested for hard copy.



Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
[In pursuance of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015]

Name of Director

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Thumma

Age

41 years

Nature of expertise

He has an overall experience of around 19 years in
Information Technology sector. He is working as a
correspondent since 2001 and presently he is correspondent
at St. Francis Institute of

Management, Gagillapur, Telangana.

Qualification

MBA

Disclosure of relationships between directors
inter-se

Brother of Joseph Sudheer Reddy Thumma

Directorship and Membership in the committees No
of other listed Companies
Shareholding of Directors 4,70,000

(As on March 31, 2018)
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